
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 19 Ionawr 2023 

 
 
I bwy bynnag a fynno wybod, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn yn  Nhŷ Penallta a thrwy Microsoft Teams ar  
Dydd Mercher, 25ain Ionawr, 2023 am 1.00 pm. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  

Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith 
os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny. Bydd gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais. 
 
Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhŷ Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw 
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: https://civico.net/caerphilly . 
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw ac yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld ar wefan y 
Cyngor, ac eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd 
delweddau/sain yr unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb trwy'r recordiad ar wefan y Cyngor: 
www.caerffili.gov.uk  
 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  
1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  

 
 

2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 
 
  

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


 
 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 30 Tachwedd 2022.  

1 - 8 
 

4  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 14 Rhagfyr 2022.  
9 - 16 

 

Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet – Nodi. 
 
5  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

17 - 20 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: - 
 
6  Diweddariad Cyllid Bryn Carno.  

21 - 28 
 

7  Dyfodol Clwb Bowlio Dan Do Islwyn.  
29 - 32 

 

8  Prawf lles y cyhoedd. 
   
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad canlynol sydd ym marn y Swyddog Priodol yn gallu cael ei 
drafod pan nad yw’r cyfarfod ar agor i’r cyhoedd ac i ystyried yn gyntaf os yw lles y cyhoedd yn 
golygu y dylai’r cyfarfod gael ei gau i’r cyhoedd ar gyfer ystyriaeth o’r eitem:- 
 

9  Estyniad I Hyblyg Oherwydd Amgylchiadau Eithriadol - Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol.  
35 - 38 

 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 

Cynghorwyr 
 C. Andrews, S. Cook, E. Forehead, N. George, P. Leonard, S. Morgan, C. Morgan, J. Pritchard, 
J. Simmonds a E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys  
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 
CABINET 

 

MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE 

AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON  

WEDNESDAY 30TH NOVEMBER 2022 AT 1PM 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor S. Morgan – Chair 

 
Councillors: 

 
 J. Pritchard (Cabinet Member for Prosperity, Regeneration and Climate Change), C. Andrews 

(Cabinet Member for Education and Communities), S. Cook (Cabinet Member for Housing),  
E. Forehead (Cabinet Member for Social Care), N. George (Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Property), C. Morgan (Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure and Green Spaces), 
Cllr. J. Simmonds (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation) and E. Stenner 
(Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance). 

 
 

 Together with: 
 

C. Harrhy (Chief Executive), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director Education and Corporate 
Services) and D. Street (Corporate Director Social Services and Housing). 
 
 

Also in Attendance: 
 

P. Cooke (Senior Policy Officer), L. Donovan (Head of People Services), I. Evans 
(Procurement and information Manger), S. Harris (Head of Financial Services and S151 
Officer), L. Lucas (Head of Customer and Digital Services), S. Mutch (Early Years Manager), 
K. Peters (Corporate Policy Manger), R. Roberts (Business Improvement Manager), S. 
Richards (Head of Education Planning and Strategy) and P. Warren (Strategic Lead for 
School Improvement) R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer) and J. 
Thomas (Committee Services Officer). 

 
 

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

 The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being live streamed, and a recording 
would be made available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. Click Here To View. 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P. Leonard (Cabinet Member for Planning 

and Public Protection) and M.S. Williams (Corporate Director Economy and Environment). 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://civico.net/caerphilly


  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest received at the beginning or during the course of the 
meeting. 

 
 
3. MINUTES – 16TH NOVEMBER 2022 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 16th November 2022 be approved as 
a correct record.  
 

 
4.         CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
 Cabinet was provided with the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, which detailed the 
scheduled reports until 19th April 2023.  

  
 Members were reminded that the Cabinet Forward Work Programme is a working document 
and thus subject to change.  The Leader reminded the Cabinet that that as a live document it 
would be subject to change. 
 
Cabinet noted the Forward Work Programme.  
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the Forward Work 
Programme be noted. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 
 

 
5. CORPORATE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT 2021/22 
  

Consideration was given to the report which sought to present Cabinet with the Corporate 
Performance Assessment (CPA) for the year ending 2021/22 a period impacted by both the 
pandemic response and the pandemic recovery. The Cabinet noted that the CPA forms part 
of the overall Council ‘self-assessment’ activity and is submitted to Cabinet for endorsement.  

 
In response to a query raised by a Member, The Corporate Director for Social Services and 
Housing, Dave Street advised the Cabinet that the are significant issues within Domiciliary 
Care and assured Members that the Council is doing everything possible in relation to the 
recruitment and retention fund and are utilising some of the resources currently available to 
assist with the issue.  The Cabinet were advised that any resolution to the current recruitment 
issue needed to be sustainable.  Cabinet noted the recruitment issue is not isolated to 
Caerphilly and that it was a Nation-wide issue.  
 
Clarification was sought in relation to vacant posts and how Officers were looking to resolve 
this issue. The Corporate Director advised the Cabinet that a number of key roles were 
currently out to advert, and proposals will be brought forward in the New Year around market 
supplements, which will hopefully ease some of the pressure and get a workforce able to 
tackle some of the challenges going forward.   

  

Cabinet was assured that the situation with recruitment and retention was a priority and that a 
new agile working policy being brought forward in the coming weeks would provide greater 
flexibility in terms of work/life balance.  

 

Cabinet queried how agile working has affected sickness levels since the pandemic.  The 
Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services, Richard Edmunds confirmed that 
sickness levels had worsened.  However, this is not unique to Caerphilly, with the vast 
majority of Local Authorities in Wales in the same position.  Currently Officers are working to 
identify the causes for example, whether this is linked to capacity issues. Cabinet was 

Page 2



  

assured that once the position has been identified then proposals would be put forward to 
address the issue.  

 

Lynne Donovan (Head of People Services) addressed the Cabinet and advised that work is 
currently being undertaken, prior to the implementation of the Recruitment Team. The Officer 
advised Members that a recruitment campaign within care commences on the 12th December 
2022, that will be run into the New Year.  There will be adverts on buses, in train stations and 
in the local cinema.  There will also be a lot more advertising on social media.  

 

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
  

1. That the Cabinet noted the comments and challenge of the Council’s Corporate 
Performance 2021/22. 

 
2. That Cabinet endorsed the Corporate Performance Assessment for 2021/22 as set 

out in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
 
6. SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR 2021/22 
 

Consideration was given to the report which sought to present Cabinet with the Annual Self-
Assessment Report for 2021/22. The report also included an update of the Well-being 
Objectives for 2021/22. The Cabinet were informed that the Local Government and Election 
(Wales) Act 2021 required a draft of the self-assessment to be reviewed by Governance and 
Audit Committee prior to coming to Cabinet.  Cabinet noted that the draft attached to the 
report as (Part 1, Appendix 1) was approved by Governance and Audit Committee on 11 
October 2022. The Cabinet also noted that the report was presented to Joint Scrutiny on 10th 
November 2022 for their scrutiny and challenge. 

  
The report sought that the Cabinet approve the Self-assessment Report (including Well-being 
Objectives) 2021/22 (Appendix 1) as a final position on organisational performance for the year 
2021/2022, following the reports being scrutinised by Governance and Audit and Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.  

 

The Chief Executive addressed the Cabinet to emphasize the importance of the report which 
captures the performance of the organisation.   The Chief Executive confirmed that there was 
a need for the organisation to be reframed and remobilised but believed that the Council has a 
very solid foundation to meet challenges that will present themselves.  
 
A Cabinet Member expressed how proud they were to see that the Council have supported 
over 4000 council tenants, by generating more than £3m in savings minimising the effect on 
welfare reform.  The Member requested further information on whether extra resources will be 
used for staffing to increase the savings now that the time of hardship will worsen.  
 
The Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer, Steven Harris advised the Cabinet that 
significant funding has been set aside for the Caerphilly Cares Team. This as well as other 
priorities will be looked at when determining budgets over the coming months.    

  
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
  

Page 3



  

1. That Cabinet approved the Self-assessment Report (including well-being 
Objectives) 2021/22(Appendix 1) as a final position on organisational performance 
for the year 2021/2022. 

 

 
7. UPDATE ON DECARBONISATION OF FLEET VEHICLES AND RELATED POLICIES 

 
Consideration was given to the report which sought to update Cabinet on the work to review 
the Council’s vehicle fleet and the transition to ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEV).  The report 
also sought to seek Cabinet approval to develop a policy for employees and visitors to be able 
to use the electric vehicle charging infrastructure for their own vehicles, at cost and to seek 
approval to implement the actions identified as the next steps to reduce carbon emissions 
from our fleet.   

 
Following a query raised by Cabinet the Senior Policy Officer, Paul Cooke confirmed that 
there is currently an issue with lead times on electric vehicles, which vary but they can be 
between 9 to 12 months. The Authority have not yet placed any orders for the new vehicles as 
the infrastructure hasn’t been in place.  However, this would be completed in the very near 
future and at this point the order will take place.    The Officer advised the Cabinet that the 
new electric vehicles will initially be managed and maintained by the manufacturer as the 
current workforce wouldn’t have the necessary skills to maintain them.  However, in the future 
it will become more economically viable to do so as an Authority, but that would involve a 
significant change in the way that the Council currently operates.    
 
The Leader was pleased to note that Council is rolling out the decarbonisation of the fleet and 
the introduction of charging points.   

 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 

 
1. That the Cabinet noted the progress made to date as part of the fleet review and 

transition to ultra-low emission vehicles work. 
 

2. That Cabinet approved the principle that employees and visitors should be allowed 
to use the vehicle charging infrastructure for their personal vehicles, and for a 
policy to developed to that effect.  

 
3. That Cabinet approved he proposed actions set out in this report to continue the 

transition to ultra-low emission vehicles.  
 
 
8. CYBER SECURITY STRATEGY 2022-2025 
 

Cabinet noted that the report had been considered by the Governance and Audit Scrutiny 
Committee as its meeting on the 14 June 2022. 
 

Consideration was given to the report which sought to update Cabinet on the draft Caerphilly 
CBC (‘Council’) Cyber Security Strategy 2022 – 2025 (‘Strategy’) and for Cabinet to approve 
the endorsement and implementation of the Strategy. 

 
Cabinet noted that the Council works closely with an external company to protect the Council 
against cyber-attacks.  The Council has recently undertaken its annual IT Health check, part 
of this health checks looks at the security procedures that are in place such as passwords for 
Staff and Members.  The health check had identified that there were a significant number of 
passwords that could be easily compromised.   

Page 4



  

 
Following a query from a Member, the Officers advised Cabinet that due to the serious risk to 
the Council, mandatory training would be put in place for all staff and Members to raise 
awareness and this could be achieved internally though online training or through training by 
external bodies.  The Leader agreed that this was something he would endorse. 

 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
 

1. That the Cabinet approved the Cyber Security Strategy 2022-2025 be endorsed 
and implemented. 

 
 

9. UPDATE ON THE PROCUREMENT REFORM AGENDA AND TO EXTEND THE 
COUNCIL’S PROGRAMME FOR PROCUREMENT (STRATEGY) FOR A PERIOD OF 

UP TO EIGHTEEN (18) MONTHS 
 

Cabinet noted that the report had been considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee on 8 November 2022. 

  

Consideration was given to the report which sought to update Cabinet on the UK Central 
Government and Welsh Government Procurement reform agenda via The Procurement Bill 
and the Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill. Cabinet was also asked to 
endorse the recommendation to extend the Council’s Programme for Procurement 
(‘Strategy’), for a period of up to eighteen (18) months to allow the future Strategy to 
incorporate the requirements of The Procurement Bill and Social Partnership and Public 
Procurement (Wales) Bill. 

 
Clarification was sought on whether following Brexit there are any immediate changes in 
relation to going from the European Legislation to the British Legislation.  Ian Evan the 
Procurement and Information Manager advised the Cabinet that EU Procurement Directives 
flow down to the UK Public Procurement Law. Therefore, there will be certain aspects that the 
UK have never adopted in terms of the EU Directives.  However, the Cabinet were advised 
that in terms of the Procurement Professional and Practitioner there will be significant 
changes in relation to the number of procedures and flexibility around the rules going forward.   
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
 
1. That Cabinet noted the current status of The Procurement Bill and the Social 

Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill. 
 

2. That Cabinet endorsed the recommendation to extend the Council’s existing 
Procurement Strategy for a period of up to eighteen (18) months. 

 
 
10. EDUCATION STRATEGY 
  

Cabinet noted that the report had been considered by the Education Scrutiny Committee 19th 
October 2022. 

  

Consideration was given to the report which updated Cabinet on the revised Education Strategy 

Page 5



  

2022-2025 building on the successes of the Shared Ambitions Strategy which shifted decision-
making from short-term to long-term and school improvement approaches from ‘challenge’ to 
‘support’.  The report also sought Cabinet approval to formally adopt and subsequently launch 
the new Education Strategy. 
 
Clarification was sought on what support was being provided to schools within the area, that 
have Ukrainian children that may have limited English language skills and may also be suffering 
PTSD.  The Early Years Manager Sarah Mutch advised the Cabinet that a weekly meeting takes 
place to look at the children coming into the Borough and the level of support they may require.  
An Education Psychologist forms part of this  group to ensure the correct support is being given. 
Schools do receive extra funding to assist in this area.   
 
Paul Warren the Strategic Lead for School Improvement advised the Cabinet that the Education 
Advisory Service (EAS) were involved with the development of the Education Strategy from the 
start and will stay involved going forward.  The Officer informed the Members that there was a 
large piece of work included within the strategy which focuses on the learner’s journey. The 
EAS worked with curriculum teams to identify what the self-evaluation journey should look like.  
The work that was carried out by the EAS was then QA’d with a group of Headteachers within 
the Authority to see if it fitted within the model of working.  The work has focused on 
strengthening the working partnership between the Local Authority and the EAS.   
 
Clarification was sought on how the strategy provides mental health support provisions for 
young adults.  The Early Years Manager advised the Cabinet that Youth Services provides a 
Youth Forum which works with young people across the Borough.  Youth Workers have all been 
trained in Mental Health First Aid and there has been a significant push around school-based 
counselling with the schools themselves doing a lot of work around well-being.    

 
The Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services thanked Keri Cole, Paul Warren 
and all of their teams for the huge amount of work involved in putting the strategy together. 

 
Following consideration and discussion it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -  
 
1. That Cabinet approved the publication of the new Education Strategy 2022-2025. 
 

 
11. CHRISTMAS CLOSEDOWN ARRANGEMENTS 

 

Consideration was given to the report which sought Cabinet approval for the Christmas 
closedown arrangements for 2022 and for the years thereafter. 
 
Cabinet noted in previous years the Council implemented a closedown for offices over the 
Christmas period. Cabinet also noted the report only applies to Council Staff employed under 
Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972 and for whom the Council has the power ’to 
appoint and manage staff on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Authority thinks 
fit’.  The report does not apply to School appointed staff for whom the Council does not hold this 
power.  

 
 Cabinet noted that Trade Unions had been consulted on the report and supported the 

recommendations.   
 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 

Page 6



  

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
 
1. That Cabinet approved that the Corporate Offices close at 12noon on Friday 23rd 

December 2022 and reopen on Tuesday 3rd January 2023. 
 

2. That Cabinet approved all staff receive 2 hours’ credit for Friday 23rd December 
2022 as per the arrangements detailed in paragraph 5.5 of this report.  

 
3. That Cabinet approved this principle of Christmas shutdown and the 2 hours credit 

for future years; the dates affected will be agreed by the Leader and the Chief 
Executive. 

 
The Chief Executive and The Leader took the opportunity to put on record they’re thanks to all 
the staff across the workforce for their hard work. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.18p.m. 
 

 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held 
on 25th January 2023. 

 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 7



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 8



  

 
CABINET 

 
COFNODION Y CYFARFOD AMLSAFLE A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA A 

THRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 DDYDD MERCHER 14 RHAGFYR 2022 AM 1PM 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Cynghorydd S. Morgan – Cadeirydd 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 
 J. Pritchard (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ffyniant, Adfywio a Newid yn yr Hinsawdd), C. Andrews 

(Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a Chymunedau), S. Cook (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Dai),  
N. George (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Eiddo), P. Leonard (Yr 
Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd), C. Morgan (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
Wastraff, Hamdden a Mannau Gwyrdd), Cyng. J. Simmonds (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Briffyrdd 
a Thrafnidiaeth) ac E. Stenner (Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid a Pherfformiad). 
 

Hefyd yn bresennol: 
Cynghorydd G. Johnston (Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Bolisi ac Adnoddau) 

 
 

 Ynghyd â: 
 

C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Y Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Thai), M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Yr Economi a’r 
Amgylchedd). 
 
 

Hefyd yn bresennol: 
 

L. Donovan (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl), S. Harris (Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Ariannol 
a’r Swyddog A151), R. Tranter (Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), N. 
Taylor-Williams (Pennaeth Tai), M. Lloyd (Pennaeth Seilwaith), M. Jennings (Prif Swyddog 
Strategaeth Tai), L. Allen (Prif Gyfrifydd Grŵp – Tai), S. O’Donnell (Prif Swyddog Treth 
Cyngor a NNDR), C. Campbell (Rheolwr Peirianneg Trafnidiaeth) S. Hughes (Swyddog 
Gwasanaethau Pwyllgorau) ac E. Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgorau). 

 
 

TREFNIADAU RECORDIO A PHLEIDLEISIO 
 

 Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rhai sy’n bresennol fod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw a byddai 
recordiad ar gael ar wefan y Cyngor, oni bai am drafodaethau sy’n cynnwys eitemau 
cyfrinachol neu’r rhai sydd wedi’u heithrio. Cliciwch yma i wylio. 

 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
 Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan E. Forehead (Aelod y Cabinet dros Ofal 

Cymdeithasol) 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

https://civico.net/caerphilly


  

 
 
 
2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd C. Andrews fuddiant personol yn unig mewn perthynas ag Eitem 
Agenda Rhif 4 - Polisïau Ystwyth gan fod ei gŵr yn gweithio i’r awdurdod lleol. 

 
Er ei fod yn benderfyniad i’r aelod, nod y Swyddog Monitro gan fod y polisïau hyn ar gyfer y 
fwrdeistref sirol ac yn cwmpasu pob gweithiwr, ac nad oeddent yn benodol i ŵr y Cynghorydd 
Andrews, byddai datgan buddiant personol yn ddigonol ac felly nad oedd yn ofynnol iddi adael 
y cyfarfod, ac y byddai’n gallu cymryd rhan yn llawn yn y drafodaeth ac i bleidleisio. 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd C. Andrews fuddiant personol yn unig mewn perthynas ag Eitem 
Agenda Rhif 6 - Ffioedd Cyfrif Refeniw Tai - 2023-24 gan fod ei thad yn denant i’r Cyngor. 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd E. Stenner fuddiant personol yn unig mewn perthynas Eitem Agenda 
Rhif 6 - Ffioedd Cyfrif Refeniw Tai - 2023-24 gan fod ei brawd yng nghyfraith yn rhentu garej 
gan y Cyngor. 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd N. George fuddiant personol yn unig mewn perthynas ag Eitem 
Agenda Rhif 6 – Ffioedd Cyfrif Refeniw Tai – 2023-24 gan ei fod yn rhentu garej gan y Cyngor. 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd J. Pritchard fuddiant personol yn unig mewn perthynas ag Eitem 
Agenda Rhif 6 - Ffioedd Cyfrif Refeniw Tai - 2023-24 gan fod ei fam-gu a’i fodryb yn denantiaid 
i’r Cyngor.  

 
Er ei fod yn benderfyniad i bob aelod, nododd y Swyddog Monitro gan fod mater yn ymwneud 
â gosod rhenti ar gyfer pob eiddo o fewn y fwrdeistref sirol gan gynnwys garejis, ac nad oedd 
yn ymwneud ag unigolyn nag eiddo penodol, byddai datgan buddiant personol yn briodol, ac 
felly byddai’r Aelodau a nodwyd uchod yn gallu cymryd rhan lawn yn y drafodaeth a phleidleisio. 

 
Mewn perthynas ag Eitem Agenda Rhif 4 - Polisiau Ystwyth, roedd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Pobl yn teimlo ei bod yn bwysig nodi er bod y polisiau o ddiddordeb i bob Swyddog a oedd yn 
bresennol gan eu bod yn berthnasol i bawb, roedd y polisïau hefyd yr un mor berthnasol i bob 
aelod staff cyflogedig yn yr awdurdod lleol nad ydynt yn gweithio mewn ysgolion, a gan nad 
oedd y Swyddogion a oedd yn bresennol yn gyfrifol am wneud penderfyniadau ac nad oeddent 
yn gallu pleidleisio ar y mater hwn, nid oedd angen gwneud datganiad o fuddiannau a gallai’r 
Swyddogion aros yn y cyfarfod wrth i’r adroddiad gael ei ystyried. Roedd y Swyddog Monitro yn 
cytuno gyda sylwadau’r Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl, a nododd gan fod y polisïau’n 
berthnasol i bawb sydd wedi’u cyflogi gan y Cyngor, ac nid y Swyddogion a oedd yn bresennol 
yn y Siambr yn unig, nid oedd angen datganiad o fuddiant. 

 
 
3.         BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET – I’W NODI 

 
Rhoddwyd Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet gerbron y Cabinet, sy’n manylu ar yr adroddiadau 
sydd wedi’u trefnu tan 19 Ebrill 2023.  

  
Roedd yr Arweinydd yn falch o weld bod y Flaenraglen Waith wedi cael ei llenwi mor bell i’r 
dyfodol, ac atgoffodd y Cabinet gan fod y ddogfen yn ddogfen fyw, y byddai’n gallu newid. O 
ystyried yr heriau cyllidebol digynsail ar y gweill, roedd yn rhagweld y byddai’r rhaglen yn 
cynyddu wrth i’r heriau hynny ddod i’r amlwg. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid nodi’r Blaenraglen Waith. 
Cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol trwy godi dwylo. 
 

 

Page 10



  

4. POLISÏAU YSTWYTH 
 

Nododd y Cabinet bod yr adroddiad wedi cael ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Bolisi ac 
Adnoddau ar 12 Rhagfyr 2022 a rhoddwyd diweddariad llafar ar eu sylwadau. Nodwyd fod y 
Pwyllgor Craffu wedi cefnogi’r pedwar polisi drafft yn unfrydol ac wedi argymell eu 
cymeradwyo i’r Cabinet. 

  

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i’r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gytundeb y Cyngor mewn perthynas â 
4 polisi sy’n cefnogi gweithio Ystwyth, sef y Polisi Gweithio Ystwyth, y Cynllun Oriau Gweithio 
Hyblyg, y Cynllun Milltiroedd a’r Polisi Gwyliau Blynyddol. Nododd y Cabinet fod trafodaethau 
wedi cymryd lle gydag Undebau GMB, Unison ac Unite ac roedd eu hadborth wedi’i nodi yn 
Atodiad 5 a 6 o adroddiad y Swyddog. 
 
Roedd y Polisi Gweithio Ystwyth yn darparu’r fframwaith sy’n pwysleisio pwysigrwydd twf 
economaidd, datgarboneiddio ac iechyd a lles gweithwyr gan alluogi staff i weithio’n fwy 
clyfar, gwaredu rhwystrau rhag gweithio’n effeithlon a thrwy gyflwyno’r model newydd hwn o 
weithio lle bynnag fo’n bosibl o fewn y Cyngor, i wella darpariaeth gwasanaethau. Nododd y 
Cabinet nad oes modd i bob gwasanaeth alluogi gweithio hyblyg/Ystwyth, ac mae angen i 
ofynion y gwasanaeth gymryd blaenoriaeth.   
 
Roedd y Polisi Gwyliau Blynyddol yn cynnig chwe diwrnod ychwanegol o wyliau, a oedd yn 
cynnwys y diwrnod ychwanegol a gytunwyd fel rhan o’r Dyfarniad Tâl y Cyd-gyngor 
Cenedlaethol ar gyfer 2022/23. Nodd y Cabinet y byddai’r gost flynyddol ychwanegol oddeutu 
£2.459m, a phe byddai’n cael cefnogaeth, byddai angen cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor ar gyfer y 
cais twf fel rhan o Gynigion Cyllideb 2023/24. 
 
Amlinellwyd y Cynllun Gweithio’n Hyblyg yn Adran 5.8 o adroddiad y Swyddog, a chyfeiriwyd 
y Cabinet at y tabl yn 5.8.4 sy’n rhoi manylion y prif wahaniaethau rhwng y cynllun cyfredol a’r 
cynllun arfaethedig. Amlinellwyd y Polisi Milltiroedd yn Adran 5.9 o adroddiad y Swyddog a 
nodwyd yr egwyddorion a’r rheolau ar gyfer hawlio costau teithio o ganlyniad i fusnes y 
Cyngor yn unol â chategoreiddiad staff a amlinellir yn y Polisi Gweithio Ystwyth. 
 
Croesawodd y Cabinet sylwadau’r Undebau Llafur a’r Pwyllgor Craffu ar Bolisi ac Adnoddau a 
chofnodwyd eu diolchiadau i’r Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl a’i Thîm am yr holl waith called 
angenrheidiol wrth baratoi’r polisïau hyn. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at Asesiadau Offer Sgrin Arddangos ac a oedd y rhain yn cael eu cynnal er mwyn 
sicrhau iechyd a diogelwch staff wrth weithio gartref. Eglurodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl 
y broses asesu a chadarnhaodd nad oedd hyn yn rhywbeth newydd i Reolwyr a Staff, a bod 
adnoddau cyfeirio ar gyfer Rheolwyr yn cael eu hadolygu’n rheolaidd ac yn cynnwys fideo. 
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad o ran gweithio hyblyg a sut y byddai hyn yn gweithio o ran cysylltu â 
Swyddogion y tu allan i oriau gwaith. Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl y byddai 
angen cytuno ar batrymau gwaith gyda Rheolwyr Llinell a fyddai’n sicrhau bod ganddynt staff 
digonol er mwyn bodloni gofynion y gwasanaeth. Er enghraifft os nad oes angen staff cefnogi 
i weithio gyda’r nos, yn anffodus, ni fyddai Rheolwyr yn gallu cefnogi ceisiadau o’r fath. Fodd 
bynnag, pe byddai angen i staff bicio allan i weld y Deintydd er enghraifft, byddent yn rhoi 
gwybod i’w Rheolwr Llinell ac felly, pe byddai rhywun yn ceisio cysylltu, byddai’r rheolwr yn 
ymwybodol, yn sicrhau bod rhywun ar gael i weithio yn lle’r aelod staff, ac felly’n osgoi 
cwynion diangen.  Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl ei bod hi’n arfer dda o ran 
rheoli i reolwyr wybod ble mae eu staff, p’un a ydynt yn gweithio gartref, allan yn y gymuned, 
neu mewn adeilad swyddfa, gan hefyd gynnig hyblygrwydd i staff. Mae’r polisïau hyn yn 
cefnogi staff, ac yn bwysicaf oll, yn cefnogi’r gwaith o ddarparu gwasanaethau i breswylwyr y 
fwrdeistref. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cabinet at Daliadau CThEM ar gyfer gweithio gartref, a gofynnwyd a oedd staff 
yn ymwybodol bod modd gwneud yr hawliau hyn. Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Pobl er bod CThEM wedi gwneud taliadau yn ystod y Pandemig, nid yw’r rhain ar gael 

Page 11



  

bellach, ond bod cyfle o hyd i wneud hawliadau ar gyfer y gorffennol os oedd staff yn dymuno 
gwneud hynny. 
 
Gofynnwyd wedyn am eglurhad am yr wythnos waith 7 diwrnod a nodwyd, a ph’un a fyddai 
modd gwneud hyn yn orfodol. Cynghorodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl na fyddai unrhyw 
newid i batrymau gwaith heb ymgynghori gyda staff a’r undebau llafur. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cabinet am ddiweddariad ar gynnydd y system deleffoni newydd. Cadarnhaodd 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol fod gwaith yn mynd 
rhagddo i wneud y system deleffoni yn fwy esmwyth, a’u bod yn gobeithio gallu peilota’r 
system newydd yn fuan. 
 
Cofnodwyd fod y Prif Weithredwr yn diolch i Bennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl a’i Thîm am eu 
hymdrechion i baratoi’r polisïau hyn, ac roedd y Prif Weithredwr yn credu bod y dogfennau 
dan ystyriaeth yn gam sylweddol ymlaen, gan gefnogi hyblygrwydd staff, ac yn bennaf oll, 
anghenion y gwasanaeth. Nododd y Cabinet fod y Prif Weithredwr wedi bod mewn cysylltiad 
uniongyrchol gyda staff wrth weithio ar ddatblygu’r polisïau a’u bod wedi cael eu croesawu. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cabinet at y Cynllun Milltiroedd, a chynigiwyd y dylid ei adolygu ar ôl cyfnod o 
flwyddyn i weld a fu unrhyw broblemau o ganlyniad i’w weithredu. Roedd Swyddogion yn 
croesawu’r cynnig a chadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl fod Uwch Swyddogion ac 
Aelodau’r Cabinet yn cyfarfod yn rheolaidd gydag Undebau Llafur a’u bod yn gobeithio y 
byddai unrhyw broblemau pe byddent yn dod i’r amlwg yn cael eu codi yn gynt na’r adolygiad 
blwyddyn trwy’r mecanweithiau hyn sydd eisoes ar waith.  
 
Yn ddibynnol ar argymhelliad ychwanegol 3.1(5) sy’n nodi bydd y Polisi Cynllun Milltiroedd yn 
cael ei adolygu ar ôl blwyddyn, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo’r argymhellion a nodir 
yn adroddiad y Swyddog.. 

 
 PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a nodir yn adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 

1. Y dylid cytuno ar y Polisi Gweithio Ystwyth a atodir yn Atodiad 1. 
 

2. Y dylid cytuno ar y Polisi Cynllun Hyblyg a atodir yn Atodiad 3. 
 

3.  Y dylid cytuno ar y Polisi Cynllun Milltiroedd yn Atodiad 4. 
 

4.  Yn amodol ar y Cyngor yn cytuno ar y cyllid o £2.459m sy’n ofynnol er mwyn cefnogi’r 
polisi, fel rhan y Broses Gosod Cyllideb 2023/24, y dylid cytuno ar y Polisi Gwyliau 
Blynyddol yn Atodiad 2. 

 
5.  Bydd y Polisi Cynllun Milltiroedd yn cael ei adolygu ar ôl blwyddyn. 

 
 
5. POLISI PERCHENTYAETH COST ISEL 
 

Nododd y Cabinet fod yr adroddiad wedi cael ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Dai ac 
Adfywiad ar 29 Tachwedd 2022. 

 
Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i’r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i 
fabwysiadu’r Polisi Perchentyaeth Cost Isel newydd yn ffurfiol, a’i lansio, fel yr atodir yn 
Atodiad 1 i adroddiad y Swyddog. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet fod data’r Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol yn dangos fod costau bod yn 
berchen ar dŷ yn dod yn cynyddu fwy a mwy, gyda chwyddiant prisiau tai yn mynd y tu hwnt i’r 
cynnydd mewn incwm. Byddai’r polisi yn helpu pobl sydd methu prynu 100% o eiddo ar y 
farchnad agored, yn helpu i leihau nifer y bobl sydd ar y gofrestr dai gyffredinol a chefnogi’r 

Page 12



  

Cyngor yn ei uchelgais i greu cymunedau cytbwys a chynaliadwy fel yr amlinellir yn y 
Strategaeth Dai Leol a gymeradwywyd yn ddiweddar. 
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch a fyddai trothwy meini prawf incwm y cartref yn cael ei 
ddiweddaru’n flynyddol. Nododd y Pennaeth Tai mai’r ffordd fwyaf synhwyrol o gadw cofnod 
ac adolygu hyn fyddai drwy ddefnyddio data chwyddiant cyflogau a data’r Swyddfa Ystadegau 
Gwladol. Gofynnodd yr Aelod wedyn am wybodaeth bellach o ran amcangyfrif o nifer y bobl a 
fyddai â diddordeb yn y cynllun, ac a fyddai’r pwysau ar y stoc dai bresennol yn ysgafnhau pe 
byddent yn cymryd rhan yn y cynllun. 
 
Cynghorodd y Swyddog mai un o fanteision allweddol y polisi oedd y byddai’n galluogi’r rhai 
sy’n dymuno bod yn berchen ar gartrefi sydd ar y gofrestr dai ar hyn o bryd ond yn methu â 
bod yn berchen ar dŷ  yn llawn i gymryd rhan mewn trefniant rhentu rhannol neu 
berchnogaeth rannol a lleihau pwysau ar y gofrestr. Cynghorwyd yr Aelod Cabinet, er bod 
cais wedi’i wneud ar gyfer y data, nid yw’n cael ei gasglu ar hyn o bryd, gan nad oes gan y 
Cyngor drefniant i’w gynnig, roedd mwy na 1000 o breswylwyr wedi datgan diddordeb mewn 
cymryd rhan yn y math hwn o drefniant a gynigir gan bartneriaid cymdeithasau tai eraill. 
 
Gofynnwyd wedyn am eglurhad ynglŷn â’r gwahaniaeth rhwng y polisi hwn a thenantiaid yn 
prynu eu tai Cyngor eu hunain. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog fod hyn yn gwbl wahanol i hawl i brynu gan nad oes yn ymwneud â 
deiliaid cytundeb presennol yn prynu cyfranddaliadau yn eu heiddo presennol, ond yn hytrach 
yn ymwneud ag eiddo newydd a fydd yn cael eu hadeiladu gan Caerphilly Homes.  Byddai 
hyn yn golygu adeiladu cyflenwad ychwanegol i Fwrdeistref Caerffili ac yn rhoi cyfle i’r rhai 
sy’n gymwys yn unol â meini prawf i gael mynediad i’r eiddo, gan eu galluogi i gymryd eu 
camau cyntaf i fod yn berchen ar dai. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at y Lluoedd Arfog a gofynnwyd am ragor o fanylion ynglŷn â sut y byddent yn 
derbyn cefnogaeth drwy’r polisi hwn. Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog fod ein Lluoedd Arfog yn 
derbyn y lefel uchaf o flaenoriaeth dan y polisi hwn ac yn cael eu hepgor o rai o’r meini prawf 
preswylio. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod a allai deiliad cytundeb golli ei fuddsoddiad pe na fyddai’n gallu talu rhent. 
Cynghorodd y Swyddog, y byddai Caerphilly Homes fel Landlord Cymdeithasol yn ystyried 
dyled rhent ar sail achosion unigol ac yn gweithio gyda’r unigolyn hwnnw. Fodd bynnag, 
byddai’n wahanol ar gyfer yr elfen forgais gan mai mater i’r darparwr morgais neu fanc fyddai 
hynny, a byddai’r rhain yn edrych i weld a oedd y deiliad cytundeb wedi methu â thalu ei 
forgais, cyn cymryd unrhyw gamau dilynol.   
 
O ran gwelliannau i’r tai a chynnal a chadw, gofynnodd un Aelod a fyddai’n bosibl dan y 
cynllun hwn i ddeiliaid cytundeb wneud gwelliannau i’w cartrefi, a phwy fyddai’n gyfrifol am 
gynnal a chadw ac atgyweirio. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Tai y byddai modd caniatáu 
gwelliannau bach, ond byddai angen caniatâd ar gyfer gwelliannau sylweddol megis estyniad. 
O ran cynnal a chadw’r eiddo, byddai hynny’n gyfrifoldeb i ddeiliad y cytundeb. 

   
 

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo, a gan ddefnyddio Microsoft Forms, cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a nodwyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog y dylid 
cymeradwyo cyflwyno a chyhoeddi’r Polisi Perchentyaeth Cost Isel newydd. 

  
 

 
6. FFIOEDD Y CYFRIF REFENIW TAI – 2023/2024 

 

Page 13



  

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i gynyddu 
ffioedd rhent ar gyfer tai a garejys y cyngor. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet fod paratoi cyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai yn waith ar wahân i’r gwaith sydd 
ynghlwm â gosod Cyllideb y Gronfa Gyffredinol a Threth y Cyngor. Mae’r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 
yn cael ei ariannu gan incwm rhent a dderbynnir gan Denantiaid y Cyngor, yn hytrach na 
Threthdalwyr y Cyngor. Er bod rhaniad amlwg rhwng y cronfeydd hyn, mae’r rhan fwyaf o’r 
gyfran o rent tenantiaid y cyngor yn cael ei ariannu drwy gymorth ariannol ar ffurf Budd-dal Tai 
neu Gredyd Cynhwysol, sy’n deillio o bwrs y trethdalwr, ac felly mae’n rhaid sicrhau gwerth 
am arian bob amser. 
 
Hysbyswyd y Cabinet fod cynnydd mewn chwyddiant wrth ddarparu pob agwedd ar y 
gwasanaeth tai gan gynnwys costau deunyddiau, ymrwymiad i sicrhau Sero Net Carbon ac 
adeiladu tai Cyngor yn costio arian, a bod angen cynyddu rhenti’r Cyngor er mwyn sicrhau 
bod digon o adnoddau ar gael i reoli a chynnal ein stoc dai yn effeithiol.  Gofynnwyd i’r 
Cabinet nodi fod y Cyngor yn cefnogi tenantiaid yn barhaus, a’i fod eisoes wedi helpu i 
sicrhau gwerth £3.2m o fudd-daliadau ychwanegol, 800 o geisiadau llwyddiannus ar gyfer 
taliadau disgresiwn ar gostau tai, ac wedi helpu dros 1000 o breswylwyr gyda grant tanwydd 
gaeaf o £200. 
 
Mae’r Cabinet yn cydnabod bod rhenti Caerffili yn rhai o’r isaf, ond roeddent yn holi sut mae’r 
rhenti hyn yn cymharu gyda’r sector preifat. Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog fod rhentu tŷ 3 ystafell 
wely yn breifat yn costio oddeutu £134 yr wythnos (cyfnod rhentu 48 wythnos) a bod rhent yng 
Nghaerffili oddeutu £108.80 yr wythnos/cyfnod 48 wythnos. Am dŷ 2 ystafell wely yn y sector 
preifat, byddai rhent yn costio oddeutu £124 yr wythnos, ac yng Nghaerffili, byddai’n costio 
£101, cyfwerth ag 20% yn rhatach. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelodau a oedd arolwg tenantiaid wedi cael ei gynnal mewn perthynas â’r 
cynnydd mewn rhent. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Tai fod Caerphilly Homes yn cynnal arolygon 
rheolaidd gyda thenantiaid, ac roedd rhenti wedi denu ymatebion diddorol iawn, gydag 
adborth cadarnhaol a negyddol. Fodd bynnag, roedd mwyafrif helaeth y deiliaid cytundeb yn 
cydnabod bod angen cynyddu rhent er mwyn i Gaerffili fel Landlord allu parhau i ddarparu’r 
lefel gwasanaeth hwn. 
 
Gofynnwyd wedyn am eglurhad a oedd unrhyw waith modelu fforddiadwyedd wedi cael ei 
wneud ynghylch y cynnydd o 6.5% a dywedodd y Pennaeth Tai fod y Matrics Joseph 
Rowntree (JR) wedi cael ei ddefnyddio ac wedi dangos bod y cynnydd ymhell o fewn y 
trothwy fforddiadwyedd o dan y model hwnnw. Roedd hyd yn oed cynnydd o 8% wedi dangos 
ei fod  100% o dan y Matrics JR. 
 
Roedd y Cabinet yn croesawu defnydd o’r Model JR a gofynnwyd a gafwyd cefnogaeth draws 
bleidiol ar gyfer y cynnydd pan gafodd ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Dai ac Adfywio.  
Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog fod 85% wedi cytuno a bod 15% wedi peidio â phleidleisio. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet yr ymdrechion sylweddol sy’n cael eu gwneud gan Dimau Caerphilly 
Homes a Caerffili yn Gofalu i gynorthwyo preswylwyr a thenantiaid o ran yr argyfwng costau 
byw, yn enwedig help a chyngor o ran gwneud y gorau o gymorthdaliadau, ac er y byddai 
mwyafrif tenantiaid y Cyngor yn derbyn Budd-dal Tai, roedd y Cabinet yn ymwybodol iawn o 
effaith y cynnydd arfaethedig ar y rhai sy’n talu eu rhent eu hunain, ac yn croesawu 
sylwadau’r Pennaeth Tai mewn perthynas â chynnal tenantiaethau a chymorth i denantiaid. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo, a gan ddefnyddio Microsoft Forms, cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol. 

 
  PENDERFYNWYD, am resymau sydd wedi’u cynnwys yn adroddiad y Swyddog: - 

 
Cafodd argymhellion y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Dai ac Adfywio eu hystyried a’u nodi gan y Cabinet. 
 

Page 14



  

1. Cynyddu rhent fesul eiddo i uchafswm a ganiateir yn unol â pholisi rhent LlC, sef 
6.5%. (Cynnydd o £6.10 yr wythnos yn y rhent cyfartalog presennol o £93.80 i 
£99.90 yr wythnos dros 52 wythnos) 

 
2. Bydd lefel rhent ar gyfer garejis o fis Ebrill 2023 yn cynyddu 5.5% i £8.85 yr 

wythnos.  
 
 

 
7. SYLFAEN Y DRETH GYNGOR 
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i’r adroddiad a roddodd fanylion sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor at ddibenion 
gosod y dreth a’r ganran gasglu a fyddai’n cael ei defnyddio, a gofynnwyd am gytundeb y 
Cabinet ar gyfer cyfrifo Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2023/24. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cabinet am eglurhad pam mae sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor yn seiliedig ar eiddo 
Band D, a chadarnhaodd y Swyddog bod hynny’n ofynnol gan Lywodraeth Cymru, a nodwyd 
mai Band D oedd y band canolog pan gyflwynwyd y Dreth Gyngor yn y lle cyntaf. 

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo, a gan ddefnyddio Microsoft Forms, cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol  

 
  PENDERFYNWYD, am resymau sydd wedi’u cynnwys yn adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
   

1. Bydd cyfradd gasglu Treth y Cyngor yn parhau i fod yn 97.50% ar gyfer blwyddyn 
ariannol 2023/24. 
 

2. Sylfaen y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer 2023/24 fydd 61,135.13, gyda Sylfaen y Dreth 
Gyngor ar gyfer pob Ardal Cyngor Cymuned yn cael ei amlinellu ym mharagraff 
5.6. 

 
 

8. PRAWF BUDDIANNAU CYHOEDDUS 

 
Bu Aelodau’n ystyried y Prawf Buddiannau Cyhoeddus, a daethpwyd i’r casgliad ar y cyfan fod 
budd cyhoeddus ar gyfer cynnal yr esemptiad yn bwysicach na’r budd cyhoeddus o ddatgelu’r 
wybodaeth a: - 

 
PHENDERFYNWYD, yn unol ag Adran 100(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, y dylid 
eithrio’r cyhoedd rhag gweddill y cyfarfod oherwydd y tebygolrwydd o ddatgelu 
gwybodaeth esempt fel y’i diffinnir ym mharagraff 14 Atodlen 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth 
Leol 1972. 
 

 
9. GWELLIANNAU I GYLCHFAN A468/B4600 PONT BEDWAS  

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo, a gan ddefnyddio Microsoft Forms, cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol  
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau sydd wedi’u cynnwys yn adroddiad y Swyddog, y 
dylid cymeradwyo argymhellion 3.1 a 3.2 yn adroddiad y Swyddog. 

 
 

   
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 2.15pm 

 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y 
cyfarfod ar 25 Ionawr 2023 

Page 15



  

 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 16



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 17th January 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

18/01/2023   
13:00 

Heating Plant Replacement – Ty 
Penallta 

To update Cabinet in relation to works 
required to the heating plant at Ty Penallta, to 
outline the costs and work programme 
involved and to seek Cabinet approval for the 
works to be funded from the Council’s Capital 
reserve. 
 

Ben Winstanley; Mark 
Faulkner; 
 

Cllr. Nigel George; 

18/01/2023 
13:10 

Draft Budget Proposals for 
2023/24 and Updated Medium-
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 

To present Cabinet with details of the draft 
budget proposals for the 2023/24 financial 
year and an updated MTFP, to allow for a 
period of consultation prior to final decision 
by Council on the 28th February 2023. 
 

Stephen Harris; Cllr. Eluned Stenner; 

25/01/2023 
13:00 

Pontllanfraith Indoor Bowls To provide an update on the management of 
the Islwyn Indoor Bowls Centre and to 
recommend a revised approach moving 
forward. 
 
 

Mark S Williams; Cllr. Chris Morgan;/Cllr. Nigel 
George; 

25/01/2023 
13:10 

Bryn Carno funding update To provide Cabinet with a funding update  
regarding the remedial works to address 
issues associated with failed external wall 
insulation to both Caerphilly Homes’ and 
private residential properties at Bryn Carno, 
Rhymney. 
 

Nick Taylor-Williams; Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

25/01/2023 
13:20 

Extension of Flexible retirement 
- Exempt Item 

To agree a flexible retirement extension for 1 
year. 
 

Dave Roberts; Cllr. Eluned Stenner; 

P
age 17 E

item
 A

r Y
r A

genda 5



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 17th January 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

22/02/2023 
13:00 

Budget Proposals for 2023/24 
and Updated Medium -Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) 
 

 

Following the public Consultation, Cabinet  
to consider the outcome and endorse the  
2023/24 budget proposals prior to final  
determination by Council on the 28th  
February 2023, and to note the updated  
MTFP. 
 

Stephen Harris; Cllr. Eluned Stenner; 

22/02/2023 
13:10 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) To receive and consider a report on a review  
of the council's Private Finance Initiative (PFI)  
contracts. 

Stephen Harris; Cllr. Eluned Stenner; 

22/02/2023 
13:20 

Welsh Government Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rate 
Relief Scheme 

To provide details of the new ‘Retail, Leisure 
and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme’ offered by 
WG for 2023/24 which the Authority must 
formally adopt. 
 

John Carpenter; Cllr. Eluned Stenner; 

22/02/2023 
13:30 

Empty Property Grant Approval  For Cabinet to consider the new Welsh 
Government National Empty Property Grant 
Programme. 

Nick Taylor-Williams; 
Claire Davies; 

Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

08/03/2023 
13:00 

Biodiversity and Grass Cutting 
Regimes 

To seek Cabinet approval in relation to 
proposals to enhance and promote 
biodiversity in our grass cutting regimes across 
the county borough and following 
consultation with local members.  
 
 

Mike Headington; Cllr. Chris Morgan; 

08/03/2023 
13:10 

Empty Homes Strategy  To seek Cabinet approval of the proposed 
strategy. 
 

Claire Davies; Mark 
Jennings; 

Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

P
age 18



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 17th January 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

08/03/2023 
13:20 

Council Participation strategy 
2023-2027 

To seek approval of the revised participation 
strategy that captures the new requirements 
of the local government and elections act. 
 

Hayley Lancaster; Rob 
Tranter; 

Cllr. Nigel George; 
 

22/03/2023 
13:00 

Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 2022/23 

To seek Cabinet approval of the Housing 
Business Plan position in advance of 
submitting the plan to Welsh Government by 
31st March 2023. 

Nick Taylor-
Williams;/Lesley Allen; 

Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

22/03/2023 
13:10 

Strategic Equality Plan Annual 
Report 2021-2022 
 

For Cabinet to consider and approve the 
Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report 2021-
2022 prior to publication on the Council's 
website. 
 

Kath Peters; Anwen 
Cullinane; 
 

Cllr. Nigel George;  
 

22/03/2023 
13:20 

Caerphilly Homes Task Group 
 

To agree that the Caerphilly Homes Task 
Group (CHTG) ceases as the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard (WHQS) Programme has 
been completed. 
 

Nick Taylor-Williams  
 

Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

22/03/2023 
13:30 

Gender Pay Gap  
 

To agree the Gender Pay Gap report which has 
to be published by 31st March 2023. 
 

Lynne Donovan  
 

Cllr. Nigel George;  
 

05/04/2023 
13:00 

Draft Waste Strategy 
 

For Cabinet to agree the draft Waste Strategy Marcus Lloyd; Hayley 
Jones; 

Cllr. Chris Morgan; 

19/04/2023 
13:10 

Workforce Development 
Strategy 2021-24 - 6 month 
update 

To provide Cabinet with a 6 month update 
with the progress against the Workforce 
Development Strategy. 

Lynne Donovan; Cllr. Nigel George; 
 

19/04/2023 
13:20 

Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
2021-24 - 6 monthly update 

To provide Cabinet with a 6 month update 
with the progress against the Employee 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

Lynne Donovan; Cllr. Nigel George; 
 

P
age 19



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme – 17th January 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

19/04/2023 
13:00 

Review of the Local Public 
Convenience Strategy 

To seek Cabinet approval for the Council’s 
updated Local Public Convenience Strategy 
following a review and public consultation. 
 

Rob Hartshorn; Cllr. Philippa Leonard; 

03/05/2023 
13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

17/05/2023 
13:00 

Waste Strategy 
 

For Cabinet to consider the outcome of the 
public Consultation and approve the final 
Waste Strategy. 

Marcus Lloyd; Hayley 
Jones; 

Cllr. Nigel George; 
 

31/05/2023 
13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

  14/06/2023 
            13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

  28/06/2023 
             13:00 

Local Housing Market 
Assessment 
 

The Delivery Plan sits underneath the Local 
housing Strategy which was approved in 
October 2021. The report seeks Cabinet 
approval of a number of key actions designed 
to take forward the objectives of the strategy.  
  

Nick Taylor-
Williams;/Jane Roberts-
Waite; 
 

Cllr. Shayne Cook; 

12/07/2023 
13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

  26/07/2023  
             13:00 

Annual Corporate Safeguarding 
Report plus the Annual 
Safeguarding Management 
Information Report. 
 

To seek approval of the Annual Safeguarding 
reports. 

Gareth Jenkins; 
 

Cllr. Elaine Forehead; 
 

  26/07/2023 
            13:10 

Day Services  For Cabinet to consider and approve the new 
proposed Day Services Model. 

Jo Williams; Cllr. Elaine Forehead; 
 

 

P
age 20



 
 

 
 
 

CABINET – 25TH JANUARY 2023 
 

 
SUBJECT:  BRYN CARNO FUNDING UPDATE  
 
REPORT BY:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING  
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To update members of Welsh Government’s final decision on the funding settlement 

for the failed external wall insulation scheme on 86 properties at the Bryn Carno estate 
Rhymney. Caerphilly Homes submitted a refinancing grant funding business case to 
Welsh Government in February 2022. Cabinet is asked to note Welsh Government’s 
decision and agree to increase the match funding that Caerphilly Homes will contribute 
towards the project costs from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 In 2012 the Welsh Government funded ARBED 1 scheme approved an application 

submitted by United Welsh Housing Association, in agreement with Caerphilly CBC for 
energy saving external wall insultation (EWI) to be installed at Bryn Carno in Rhymney. 
This project was managed by United Welsh Housing Association as the Government 
agent for the ARBED 1 scheme and completed in early 2013. 

 
2.2 Between 2016 and 2018 it became apparent that the EWI was defective exhibiting 

significant signs of water ingress and penetrating damp in the homes of the private 
owners, leaseholders and the Caerphilly Homes properties, that were part of the 
scheme. 

 
2.3 Welsh Government were engaged regarding a resolution to the failed scheme and an 

investigation and report into the failed insulation was commissioned. This concluded 
that there should be a replacement scheme delivered to remedy the inherent design 
weaknesses of the scheme and aspects of poor workmanship and reinsulate the 
homes. This would ensure the original objective of energy saving was achieved, 
particularly important now that so many households face fuel poverty in the coming 
months and years. 

 
2.4 After many months of debate about who was responsible and who should take forward 

the replacement scheme, as Caerphilly Homes owns 36 of the 86 properties, has 
detailed knowledge of this estate and a good relationship with the residents, it was 
proposed that Caerphilly Homes undertake a tenure neutral scheme which includes all 
properties within Bryn Carno.  

 
 
2.5 Welsh Government wrote to the council and the local MP outlining that in principle they 

Page 21

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



 
 

will part fund the replacement scheme agreeing an in-principle award of £1.05million 
pending further details and have requested that a detailed five case business model is 
submitted to set out the funding required and how the scheme will be delivered. 

 
2.6 After the business case was submitted Caerphilly Homes met Welsh Government to 

discuss their initial feedback. Amendments were made following this feedback and a 
revised business plan was submitted. 

 
2.7 Caerphilly are committed to contributing to this remediation project, due to the 

significant impact of the failed EWI for tenants and residents and our housing stock, 
even though not responsible for the design and scheme management of the original 
project and therefore are seeking funding to remedy the situation within our stock. 

 
2.8 Welsh Government officers wrote to the Head of Housing on 8th November 22 and 

subsequently sent a formal grant award letter on the 22nd of December to inform that 
the Minister for Climate Change has made a decision on the business case. However, 
the decision was to award funding of £1.903m which is only in relation to the remedial 
work on the 50 owner occupier properties affected in Bryn Carno. This therefore 
means that the Caerphilly Homes contribution needs to increase by £563,100 with a 
total contribution to the project of £1,195,800. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 That cabinet note the update and decision by Welsh Government.  
 
3.2 Approve the revised scheme, costs, delivery timeline and additional match funding 

contribution from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in respect of Council owned 
properties, to deliver the tenure neutral scheme by Caerphilly Homes. 

 

 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 The failed EWI is having a significant impact on both the properties and residents, so 

the remediation works are essential to protect the health and wellbeing of residents 
and to secure the future integrity of the housing stock. Caerphilly Homes are best 
placed to deliver this scheme, procure the specialist advice and contractors to deliver 
the project for all the properties affected across the estate. 

 
4.2 The grant award of £1,903,000 by Welsh Government covers the estimated works 

costs for the all the affected private homes on the estate and the procurement of a 
PAS2035 consultant. The increased Caerphilly Homes match funding contribution will 
be made by the HRA and solely contribute towards the works on the Caerphilly Homes 
properties. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Background 
 
5.1 In the early 2000’s, whilst Rhymney was a designated Renewal Area, the properties in 

Bryn Carno estate benefitted from a group repair scheme whereby the properties in 
private ownership were offered financial assistance to renew their main roofs and re-
line the finlock gutters. The Council owned properties, under a planned maintenance 
programme funded by the HRA, also benefitted from roof renewal, window 
replacement and gutter re-lining. 

Page 22



 
 

 
5.2 During November 2012, United Welsh Housing Association, the scheme managers for 

Welsh Government scheme ARBED 1, sought areas within the Caerphilly County 
Borough that would benefit from energy saving measures such as external wall 
insulation (EWI).  Bryn Carno estate was identified as one which would benefit, and the 
subsequent ARBED funding bid was successful, on condition that the scheme of works 
was completed by the end of March 2013. The EWI systems, using a Rockwool 
product, were installed to private and Caerphilly Homes’ properties between January 
and March 2013 during periods of cold and wet weather using six different contractors. 

 
5.3 During 2016, complaints were received from several residents and the local ward 

member that the render coat to several properties had started to de-laminate, flake and 
come away from base coat.  Meetings were held between Caerphilly County Borough 
Council, United Welsh, and Rockwool to consider why the EWI had failed and possible 
rectification measures. 

 
5.4 As Welsh Government had part funded ARBED, it was brought to their attention to 

establish a way forward. Welsh Government decided that all parties involved in the 
project needed to collaborate to determine how and why the EWI system had failed 
and establish a solution, following which, in March 2021 Curtin’s were engaged by 
Caerphilly County Borough Council.  

 
5.5 The Curtin’s report identified several issues that contributed to the delamination of the 

EWI system, such as lack of a perforated base channel, the finlock gutters and not 
extending the rooflines which would have provided additional protection to the EWI 
rather than relying on finishing trims and sealants. To ensure both existing moisture 
and future water ingress are eliminated from the EWI system, it has been 
recommended that the defective EWI systems are removed in their entirety, along with 
the existing finlock gutters, to be replaced with new rainwater goods and EWI system 
respectively.  

 
5.6 Following the report it was concluded that, in total, 68 houses would require 

comprehensive EWI replacement scheme along with 14 bungalows, with a further 4 
properties potentially requiring a first EWI installation and associated works. The 36 
Caerphilly Homes properties all require EWI replacement. 

 
 Delivery 

 
5.7  As Caerphilly Homes owns a significant proportion of the properties in Bryn Carno, has 

detailed knowledge of this estate and has a good relationship with the residents, it is 
proposed that Caerphilly Homes undertake a tenure neutral scheme which includes all 
properties within Bryn Carno.   

 
5.8 The scheme will be run by the Council’s in-house grant agency service and 

maintenance and repairs teams, which would run the project in its entirety, including 
production of the tenders, selection of contractors, and oversight and supervision of to 
ensure works are carried out to an acceptable standard, and in line with technical 
guidance and specifications. A fee of 15% of the cost of works for this service has 
been included in the business case submission. 

 
5.9 The scheme will be delivered in accordance with PAS2035, a specification for whole 

house or whole building retrofit. This is an approach to the installation of energy 
efficiency measures (EEMs) which considers the requirement of the entire building, 
both from a technical standpoint and considering factors like occupancy comfort. The 

Page 23



 
 

cost of this retrofit coordinator have been funded by Welsh Government in their final 
grant award letter. 

 
5.10 It is recognised that costs are fluctuating significantly due to shortages and escalating 

costs of building materials and the limited availability of suitable contractors. The cost 
of procuring a specialist retrofit consultancy will be assumed within the shared service 
arrangement that the HRA pays for with regards to a corporate procurement function. 

 
5.11 It was originally anticipated that the scheme could be delivered over two financial 

years. As the works to the properties were not possible in the wetter colder autumn 
and winter months, works would need to be carried out in the warmer summer months. 
The delay to decision making from when the original business case was submitted 
means that the final iteration of the business case requested the funding to be drawn 
down over three financial years.  

 
5.12 The funding award states that it relates to the period 2022/2023 to 2024/25 and must 

be claimed in full by 31 March 2025 otherwise any unclaimed part of the funding will 
cease to be available. This enables the works to be carried out over two summers as 
requested.  

 
5.13 In accepting the funding by signing and retuning the award letter, the council are also 

signing up to the funding conditions, quarterly draw down timetable and targets for 
completion of the works to the 50 owner occupier properties.  As much as it is the 
intention to deliver a tenure neutral scheme concurrently, if there are delivery 
pressures following the tender and programming there will have to be a prioritisation 
on works to the owner occupier properties in advance of the Caerphilly Homes 
properties to mitigate this target risk. This will be avoided with a detailed risk 
management approach as all properties should be able to be delivered on the same 
timeframe. 

 
 Funding Bid  

 
5.14 Caerphilly County Borough Council were asked by Welsh Government to submit a five-

case business plan setting out the strategic, economic, commercial, financial and 
management cases for funding. 

 
5.15 Caerphilly Homes submitted the case in February 2022 seeking funding of £1,849,000 

for the remediation of the privately owned properties in anticipation of the need to 
renew the roofs of the properties to satisfactorily complete the project, and £54,000 to 
procure a specialist retrofit consultant in accordance with PAS2035. 

 
5.16 Whilst funding of £632,700 was originally made available by Caerphilly Homes through 

the Housing Revenue Account for associated works to the council owned properties 
significant additional funding is required to fund the EWI replacement to the council 
properties. Funding of £563,100 was therefore also being sought for the replacement 
of the EWI to the Council owned properties and the associated internal remediation 
works from Welsh Government. 

 
5.17  This has not been supporting by Welsh Government and this contribution that was 

sought from Welsh Government will now need to be made by Caerphilly Homes from 
the Housing Revenue Account. 

 
5.18 These estimated costs remain subject to change as the scheme is yet to be subject to 

a comprehensive tendering exercise and the market remains volatile. An assumed 
contingency of approximately 20% was included within the costs for this project which 

Page 24



 
 

is part of the financial risk mitigation given the significant increase in materials and 
labour costs that the building industry has experienced in recent years. 

 
 5.19 Although a tender process needs to be completed for these works, our benchmarking 

information on materials from Caerphilly Homes single source supply partner have 
provided for us some accurate up to date market intelligence. This has enabled us to 
be confident that although far higher than last year we have a good estimate of the 
price for the works required. 

 
5.20 Final funding summary and conditions  
 
5.21 Welsh Government officers wrote to the Head of Housing on 8th November 22 and 

subsequently sent a formal grant award letter on the 22nd of  December to inform that the 
Minister for Climate Change has made a decision on the Caerphilly Homes Bryn Carno 
business case. However, the decision was to award funding of £1.903m which is only 
in relation to the remedial work on the 50 owner occupier properties affected. This 
therefore means that the Caerphilly Homes contribution needs to increase by £563,100 
with a total cost to the Housing revenue Account (HRA) of £1,195,800. 

 
o Total scheme cost £3,098,800 

 
o Caerphilly Homes properties - £1,195,800 
o Private properties - £1,849,000 
o £54,000 consultancy for PAS2035 
 
o Funding from WG - £1,903,000 
o Council contribution from HRA - £1,195,800 

 
5.22 Before any draw down of funding over 9 quarters starting January 2023 to March 2025, 

there are several pre-conditions to be met.  Most notably the completion of the 
assurance statement. There are also requirements during the project, such as 
quarterly reporting and that the PAS2035 retrofit coordinator confirm the project is 
delivered in accordance with PAS2035 requirements and specifications for the exact 
works are met. 

 
5.23 A warranty will also need to be provided to safeguard residents of any future failure 

and there will need to be a household maintenance handover pack on completion of 
the works for the residents. A copy of which should be sent to Welsh Government 
before issue to ensure it is suitably comprehensive and easy to understand.  

 
5.24 These conditions will be met but have a cost implication that wasn’t considered 

previously. The 20% contingency should be sufficient to cover these costs, if there 
aren’t any significant cost overruns. 

 
 
6. Conclusion   

 
6.1 The failed EWI is having a significant impact on both the properties and residents, so 

the proposed remediation works are essential to protect the health and wellbeing of 
residents and to ensure the integrity of the housing stock. Caerphilly Homes is best 
placed to procure and carry out the works for this project given the history and 
knowledge of the estate and the management of a large proportion of the estate. 

6.2  Ultimately, the bid for funding was not supported in full and the HRA will now need to 
contribute additional capital to deliver the works to the Caerphilly Homes properties. 

Page 25



 
 

There is no other alternative available to ensure that these properties have the energy 
saving and fuel cost saving insulation works that both the owner occupiers and 
Caerphilly Homes contract holders were promised some years ago. This is the 
quickest way to ensure that the significant water ingress issues experienced is finally 
remediated. 

 

7. ASSUMPTIONS 

7.1 The estimated assumed costs remain subject to change as the scheme is yet to be 
subject to a comprehensive tendering exercise and the market remains volatile. 
An assumed contingency of approximately 20% within the costs for this project which 
is part of our financial risk mitigation. 

 
7.2 It as assumed in advance of any consultation with the private owners that they will be 

willing to have these works carried out to their properties. If they don’t then some of the 
works could be compromised as properties are semi-detached.  
 

7.3 An assumed fee of 15% of the cost of works for this service has been included in the 
business case submission for the in-house grant agency team that will project manage 
the full process, similar to the private sector grant and loans for works carried by the 
Private Sector Housing Team and some Caerphilly Homes planned maintenance work. 
 

7.4 Although the bid is pre-tender for these works, benchmarking information on materials 
from Caerphilly Homes’ single source supplier partner have provided for us some 
accurate up to date market intelligence. This has enabled us to be confident that 
although far higher than last year we have a good estimate of the price for the works 
required.  

 
7.5 Should there be any further cost overruns going forward the council will commit to 

covering cost overruns from the contingency.  Only in the instance that costs increase 
beyond all benchmark trends analysis will a conversation be had with WG on 
additional funding for the project. 

 
8. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

8.1 There was a specific request to bid to Welsh Government for funding and the strategic 
case and impact is specific to the residents within the Bryn Carno estate therefore no 
wider IIA has been required for this project. 

 
8.2 As the report proposes that 100% assistance be offered with no post completion 

conditions imposed regarding repayment an Integrated Impact Assessment is not 
required. 

 
8.3       If the proposal is approved a comprehensive engagement exercise will be undertaken 

with the residents of Bryn Carno regarding the proposals, and consent sought from the 
individual private owners to proceed with the proposed scheme of works. 

 
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The financial implications of this business case grant submission to the council and 

namely the ringfenced Housing Revenue Account have been articulated within the 
paper. 

Page 26



 
 

9.2 The total scheme cost is currently £3,098,800 with an estimated contribution from the 
HRA of £1,195,800. Given discussions have been ongoing for some time the HRA has 
currently already allowed for the original contribution of £632,700 in its capital budget.  
The additional £563,000 has been allocated to the HRA capital budget and has been 
funded from HRA balances. 

10. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 There are no implications here as the project will be managed by the existing 

Caerphilly Homes team. 
  

 
11. CONSULTATIONS 

 
11.1 All consultee responses have been included in this report.  
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  

 
12.1 Local Government Act 1972, Housing Wales Act 2014  
 
 
 
 
Author:  Nick Taylor-Williams, Head of Housing, taylon1@caerphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Cllr Shayne Cook  - Cabinet Member for Housing 

Cllr Andrew Whitcombe - Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee 

                       Cllr Patricia Cook - Vice Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny  
   Committee 
Cllr Carl Cuss - Local Ward Member 
Christina Harrhy - Chief Executive 
Dave Street - Corporate Director Social Services and Housing 

                        Mark S Williams - Corporate Director Environment and Economy 
 Richard Edmunds - Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services 
 Robert Tranter - Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Stephen Harris - Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer 
 Lesley Allen - Principal Group Accountant - Housing 
 Fiona Wilkins - Housing Service Manager 
 Claire Davies  - Private Sector Housing Manager  
 Alan Edmunds - PAMS Manager 
 
 

 

Page 27



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



  
 
 

CABINET – 25TH JANUARY 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  THE FUTURE OF ISLWYN INDOOR BOWLS CLUB  

 
REPORT BY:       CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND 

ENVIRONMENT 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 

1.1  To update Cabinet on the latest position in relation to Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club (IIBC). 

1.2 To outline the opportunities and constraints for the Council at present as there is not 
currently a lease in place with Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club. 

1.3 To seek approval for progressing a procurement process to secure a commercial 
operator for the management of the facility and enter into an appropriate agreement .  
 

 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 Since the Covid-19 pandemic in March 2020 Islwyn Indoor Bowls club (IIBC) has not 

been able to deliver full provision, i.e. Bowls and Hospitality. All activities were closed 
during periods of lockdown and the Club lost all of their paid staff. When Welsh 
Government Covid restrictions were lifted indoor activities were one of the last activities 
to start back and by this time the IIBC committee made up of club volunteers were 
running the operational duties of opening and closing the club and keeping the bowls 
section going.  

2.2  This report seeks Cabinet approval for Officers to procure a commercial operator and 
implement an appropriate commercial agreement  on behalf of the Council, so it can 
act as the catalyst for investment at IIBC to fulfil the potential of the facility within the 
community and reduce the risk to the Council. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Cabinet:  
 

(i) Authorise Officers to progress a procurement process to secure a commercial 
offer for the management of the facility, with a new agreement to be entered 
into with the successful provider for a period of 10 years (with options to extend) 
commencing at the start of the 2023 indoor bowls season (September 2023). 
 

Page 29

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



(ii) Approve that the commercial agreement ensures that the Bowls section is to 
remain as the primary focus of the facility and this element continues to be 
organised by the Islwyn Indoor Bowls Committee. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 To support the continuation of the Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club and ensure a sustainable 

future for the facility going forward. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 

5.1 Officers from the Council’s Sport and Leisure Service provided support and assistance 
to Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club after all paid staff left the organisation during the Covid-
19 pandemic. Officers and the Sport’s Governing Body, Bowls Wales, worked with the 
Club to advise on Welsh Government guidance and prepare them for the return to 
indoor sport.  

5.2 Over the course of several meetings between officers and local ward members with 
the Club’s committee it was clear that running the club was becoming more challenging 
for the volunteers due to the volume of work, small number of volunteers involved and 
lack of commercial funding (from the hospitality offer at the facility). Without support 
there was a risk that the Club would not be able to continue, the facility would be lost 
to the community, and the building for which there is no lease in place would be handed 
back to the Council. 

 
5.3 Terms for a new 10 year Management Agreement were discussed and agreed with 

the Club in 2016, when the previous 21 year Management Agreement was due to 
expire. Unfortunately, the Club were not able to provide a new Club Constitution as 
they did not have the full complement of Trustees required. The Management 
Agreement could not therefore be completed. The Club has since continued to operate 
by holding over from the previous Agreement. 

 
5.4 Under the terms of the newly drafted 2016 proposed management agreement, the Club 

would have been responsible for the full repair and maintenance of the indoor bowls 
centre as well as all costs associated with running the facility at a peppercorn rent. The 
income from a commercial operator managing the facility should allow obligations to 
be met in terms of repairs, maintenance and running costs of the facility. 

5.5 Whilst the Council is not in a position to take on the direct responsibility for running the 
facility an interim measure has been put in place whereby the Council has recruited a 
member of staff to be a facility coordinator. The post is funded by the Club and 
employed by the Council for an initial period of 6 months commencing on Wednesday 
4th January 2023. The aim is to allow the IIBC volunteers to focus on the bowls aspect 
of the club and to allow for other longer term options for the future of the Club to be 
explored. 

5.6 Officers have held a number of meetings with the IIBC committee including a visit to 
the facility by the Leader, Corporate Director and Local Members. During these 
meetings the volunteers have stated that they are not able to run the facility on a 
commercial basis and have suggested a commercial operator option as long as the 
bowls activities are protected. 

5.7  Following further discussions with the IIBC committee and local Members it is now 

Page 30



proposed that a procurement process is undertaken with a view to securing a 
commercial offer for the running of the Club. It is also proposed that a new agreement 
is entered into with the successful provider for a period of 10 years. It is also intended 
that the agreement is constructed in a way that will allow the successful provider to 
take advantage of the commercial offer represented by hospitality (bar, function suite 
and catering facilities) but that the IIBC Committee continue to organise the Bowls 
section / function of the Club. 

5.8     There has been ongoing work to promote the Club in the community and on Sunday 
11th December IIBC held their Annual General Meeting (AGM) with 19 attendees. This 
represents good progress for the Club and during the AGM a new bowls committee 
was established with a Chair and Vice Chair, Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary, 
the post of Secretary is yet to be filled. 

5.9      The successful implementation of a commercial agreement will ensure continuation of 
the Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club and a sustainable future for the facility going forward. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

 
6.1 No assumptions have been made in this report. 
 

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 The Integrated Impact assessment (IIA) suggests that a commercial agreement for 

the operation of the commercial aspects of Islwyn Indoor Bowls Club (IIBC) for the 
current and potential users would have a positive impact. 

 
7.2      By developing the option of an appropriate franchise partner, IIBC will not only be 

able to operate on a more robust and sustainable footing but will be able to provide 
an increased and improved offer to those that attend the facility, along with creating 
increased opportunities through programme developments to support community 
cohesion and prospects for future employment. 

 
7.3     Ensuring that IIBC is operating in a sustainable manner also improves the 

opportunities for residents to engage in activity that support improvements to physical 
and mental health and wellbeing. The IIA can be accessed from the following link: 

 
 Link To IIA Islwyn Bowls Club 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
8.1 The Council is required to add VAT where another organisation is invoiced for a 

member of staff. The IIBC are VAT registered and therefore are able to recover the 
VAT. 

 
8.2 It is proposed that once a commercial operator has been procured and an appropriate 

agreement is signed that the peppercorn rent paid by the IIBC is discontinued and the 
Authority will have a direct financial relationship with the new provider, 

 
8.3 In the event that the commercial offer is unsuccessful then it is likely that the building 

would revert to the Council.  
 

Page 31

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/draft-iia-islwyn-indoor-bowls-club


8.4 It is likely that the Authority will need to engage specific procurement / marketing / legal 
advice to secure a franchisee and ensure that any agreement is clear, unambiguous 
and enforceable. These costs will be met from existing revenue budgets. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 As outlined above, the Authority is currently supporting the IIBC with a temporary 

member of staff (to the end of the current indoor bowls season); It Is not proposed that 
they would transfer employment to the new franchise arrangement. 

 
9.2 Any new agreement will be between the Authority and successful commercial provider 

and it is expected that the Authority will monitor the success of the agreement and 
ensure that effective relationships are maintained between the operator and IIBC. This 
role will form part of the Sport and Leisure remit. 

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The consultees listed below have been consulted on this report and their views have 

been incorporated accordingly.  
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  

 
11.1 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
 
 
Author: Jared Lougher, Sport and Leisure Development Manager, loughj@caerphilly.gov.uk.  
  
Consultees:   

Cllr Sean Morgan, Leader of Council 
Cllr Chris Morgan, Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure and Green Spaces 
Councillor D.T Davies Chair Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor A Hussey Vice Chair Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Colin Gordon, Ward member, Pontllanfraith ward 
Cllr Mike Adams, Ward member, Pontllanfraith ward 
Cllr Patricia Cook, Ward member, Pontllanfraith ward 
Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  
Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment  
Rob Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure Services 
Jeff Reynolds, Sport and Leisure Facilities Manager 
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer    
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
Ben Winstanley, Head of Land and Property 
Ian Evans, Procurement and Information Manager 
Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services 

Page 32

mailto:loughj@caerphilly.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 

.  

 
 

 

CABINET – 25TH JANUARY 2023 
 

PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS 
PARAGRAPHS 12 & 14 SCHEDULE 12A LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

SUBJECT:  EXTENSION TO FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT DUE TO EXCEPTIONAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES – CORPORATE FINANCE 

  

REPORT BY:  HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES & MONITORING OFIFCER 
 

 

I have considered grounds for exemption of information contained in the report referred to above and 
make the following recommendations to the Proper Officer: - 
 

EXEMPTIONS APPLYING TO THE REPORT: 
 

Paragraph 12 – information about an individual and paragraph 14 - Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person. 
 

FACTORS IN FAVOUR OF DISCLOSURE: 
 

There is a public interest in the way in which the Council manages its workforce. 
 

PREJUDICE WHICH WOULD RESULT IF THE INFORMATION WERE DISCLOSED: 
 

The report contains details of an individual and their financial affairs. 
 

MY VIEW ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

That paragraphs 12 and 14 should apply. I am mindful of the need to ensure the transparency and 
accountability of public authorities for decisions taken.  However, disclosure of the information 
contained in the report could prejudice the individual, the subject of the report. 
 

On that basis I feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest 
in disclosing the information.  Members are asked to consider these factors when determining the 
public interest test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of 
the meeting. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION ON EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE: 
 

On the basis set out above I feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information, and that the report should be exempt.  
 

Signed:            Dated: 17th January 2023 
 

Post:    Head Of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I accept/do not the recommendation made above. 

Signed:  
 
 
  Proper Officer    Date: 17th January 2023 

Page 33

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 34



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 30 Tachwedd 2022.
	4 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 14 Rhagfyr 2022.
	5 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	6 Diweddariad Cyllid Bryn Carno.
	7 Dyfodol Clwb Bowlio Dan Do Islwyn.
	8 Prawf lles y cyhoedd.
	9 Estyniad I Hyblyg Oherwydd Amgylchiadau Eithriadol - Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol.

